
 
 

Please ask for: 

Linda Coote 
Direct dial: 

(023) 9254 5340 
Fax: 

(023) 9254 5587 
E-mail: 

linda.coote@gosport.gov.uk 
 

2 February 2022 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Standards and Governance Committee 
DATE: 10 February 2022 
TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Linda Coote 

 

 
PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

Councillor Blackman (Chairman) 
  

 

Councillor Ms Ballard 
Councillor Beavis 
Councillor Chegwyn 
Councillor Mrs Furlong 
Councillor Herridge 
Councillor Hylands 
 

Councillor Mrs Hook 
Councillor Mrs Huggins 
Councillor Murphy 
Councillor Pepper 
Councillor Scard 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Chairman if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 



Standards and Governance Committee 
10 February 2022 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1.   Apologies for non-attendance   

2.   Declarations of interest   

 All members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafetr, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of previous meeting held on 18 November 2021 (Pages 
5 - 8) 

 

4.   Deputations - Standing Order 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation (s) on a metter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Tuesday 8 February 2022) 
 

 

5.   Public Questions - Standing Order 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on 
Tuesday 8th February 2022) 
 

 

6.   Amendments to Code of Conduct for Members and 
Arrangements for Dealing with Allegations of Breaches of the 
Code of Conduct for Members. (Pages 9 - 48) 

 

 At the Committee on 18 November 2021 it was agreed that a 
working group be set up to assist the Borough Solicitor in reviewing 
the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members and Arrangements for 
Dealing with Allegations of Breaches of the Code of Conduct for 
Members (taken together and referred to as “the Code”). This report 
sets out the amendments which are proposed to the Code for 
onward recommendation to the Policy & Organisation Board to 
consider and in turn recommend to Full Council as changes to the 
Constitution. 
 

 

7.   Audit Progress Report from 1st April to 14th January 2022 
(Pages 49 - 62) 

 



Standards and Governance Committee 
10 February 2022 

 
 

 To update the committee on the progress of the Audit Plan 2021/22, 
agreed (July 2021) to the Members with responsibility for 
governance. 
 

 

8.   Any Other Items   



Standards and Governance Committee 
18 November 2021 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
WAS HELD ON 18 NOVEMBER 2021 

  
 
Councillors Blackman, Ms Ballard, Beavis, Chegwyn, Mrs Furlong, Herridge, Hylands, 
Mrs Hook, Mrs Huggins, Murphy, Pepper and Scard 
 
 
63. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
There were no apologies 
 
64. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were none 
 
65. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 14 OCTOBER 2021  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 October 2021 be signed as a true 
and correct record. 
 
66. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
There were none 
 
67. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.5  
 
There were none 
 
68. WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY & STATISTICS  
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Chief Internal Auditor updating Members in 
regards to the Whistleblowing Policy and any referals made from October 2020 to October 
2021. 
 
The Chief Internal Auditor advised members that there had been no referrals during the 
year and the policy had been reviewed with no changes made. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee noted: 
 

a. That no referrals had been made under the Whistleblowing Policy between October 2020 
and October 2021. 

b. The Whistleblowing Policy had been reviewed and no changes had been made. 

 
69. AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT  1ST APRIL TO 28TH OCTOBER 2021  
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Chief Internal Auditor updating the Committee 
on the progress of the Audit Plan 2021/22, agreed (July 2021) to the Members with 
responsibility for governance. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Standards and Governance Committee 
18 November 2021 

 

2 

The Chief Internal Auditor drew Members attention to section 3 where the number of hours 
spent by the Senior Auditor on Covid grants work were laid out. 
 
He also advised members that two full audits have been completed on IT access and 
Streetscene Enforcement. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee noted the progress of the Audit Plan 2021/2022 from 1st 
April 2021- 28th October 2021. 
 
70. REVIEW OF CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS  
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer setting 
out the need for the Council to review its Code of Conduct for Members and Arrangements 
for Dealing with Allegations of Breaches of the Code of Conduct for Members set out in Part 
4 Schedule 17 of the Constitution, and considers the proposal of setting up a working group 
of Members and Officers to review the Code and assist the Borough Solicitor in proposing 
amendments to a future Committee. 
 
The Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer reminded Members that a report had been 
brought to Committee a year ago recommending that the Code should be subject to an 
annual review. He advised that a working group should be convened to go through the 
Code  and look at proposals for amendments, and was looking for nominations from the 
Committee. 
 
Members welcomed the initial review and the introduction of an annual review as they felt 
that legislation and society changes needed to be reflected in the Code. They hoped that 
sexual harassment would be included in Best Practice recommendation 1, and that dyslexia 
would be included in Best Practice recommendation 10. 
 
Members also wished to determine what would be considered acceptable language in the 
Chamber and reflect it in the Code. 
 
Members were advised that the formation of a working group is not covered by the 
Constitution in the same way as a Task & Finish Group is and not subject to the same rules 
and therefore the group can agree on how the group works and where it is drawn from. 
 
The Borough Solicitor advised that he would also be consulting the Independent Persons 
and Group Leaders hence the possible need for two meetings. 
 
A Member felt that making it an annual review removed the suspicion that there was a 
specific purpose for reviewing the Code. 
 
A Member felt that substitutes should be allowed to cover the eventuality of someone falling 
ill or isolating with Covid, but Members felt this would be covered by having 5 Members in 
the Working Group. 
 
Members felt that holding the meeting on Teams should be an option, but only as a plan B  
 
A Member felt that proportionality did not need to be observed in the Working Group. 
 

Page 6



Standards and Governance Committee 
18 November 2021 

 

3 

A Member proposed an amendment to the Recommendation that the Working Group 
should only consist of three Members. This was seconded and a vote taken which was lost. 
 
RESOLVED: That the Committee agreed to establish a working group of five members 
(made up of the Chairman plus four other members of the Committee) to work with Officers 
to review the Code of Conduct for Members and Arrangements for Dealing with Allegations 
of Breaches of the Code of Conduct for Members and to consider proposals for amendment 
so that the Borough Solicitor & Monitoring Officer can report back to the Committee at a 
subsequent meeting in early 2022 with proposals for amendments for onward submission to 
the Policy & Organisation Board and Full Council for a change of the Constitution. 
 
 
71. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 6.20 pm 

 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8



 

Board/Committee: STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

Date of meeting: 10 FEBRUARY 2022 

Title: AMENDMENTS TO CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 
AND ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH 
ALLEGATIONS OF BREACHES OF THE CODE OF 
CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 

Author: BOROUGH SOLICITOR & MONITORING OFFICER 

Status: FOR DECISION & RECOMMENDATION TO POLICY AND 
ORGANISATION BOARD 

 

Purpose 

At the Committee on 18 November 2021 it was agreed that a working group be set 
up to assist the Borough Solicitor in reviewing the Council’s Code of Conduct for 
Members and Arrangements for Dealing with Allegations of Breaches of the Code of 
Conduct for Members (taken together and referred to as “the Code”). This report sets 
out the amendments which are proposed to the Code for onward recommendation to 
the Policy & Organisation Board to consider and in turn recommend to Full Council 
as changes to the Constitution. 

Recommendation 

That the Committee: 

i. approves the changes to the Code of Conduct for Members and 

Arrangements for Dealing with Allegations of Breaches of the Code 

of Conduct for Members set out in the Appendix A (‘the Code’) to this 

report;  

ii. agrees that the Borough Solicitor & Monitoring Officer undertake a 
public consultation exercise regarding the revised Code of Conduct 
for Members for four weeks after the date of this Committee; 

iii. delegates power to the Borough Solicitor & Monitoring Officer to 
make any minor changes to the Code of Conduct for Members as a 
result of the public consultation; 

iv. agrees that the results of the public consultation and the Code shall 
thereafter be reported to the Policy & Organisation Board and Full 
Council with the Code being proposed for approval as a change of 
the Constitution. 

 

1.0 Background 
 

1.1 On 18 November 2021 the Committee considered a report by the Borough 
Solicitor & Monitoring Officer regarding the recommendations made by the 
Committee on Standards in Public Life setting out the need for an annual 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



review of the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members and Arrangements 
for Dealing with Allegations of Breaches of the Code of Conduct for 
Members (taken together and referred to as “the Code”). The report 
proposed that a working group be set up to assist with the review. 
Subsequently, a working group consisting of Councillors Rev Blackman, 
Herridge, Huggins, Murphy and Pepper together with Peter Large, one of 
the Council’s Independent Persons, the Borough Solicitor & Monitoring 
Officer, and Linda Coote, Trainee Democratic Services Officer was formed.  
 

1.2 The working group met on 08 December 2021 and then again on 06 
January 2022 to consider revised versions of the Code and supporting 
documentation provided by the Borough Solicitor. Cllr Pepper was unable 
to attend the meeting on 06 January 2022 and the Borough Solicitor has 
discussed further revisions with him separately. 
 

1.3 In addition to the working group meetings, the Borough Solicitor has 
discussed the proposed changes with the Council’s other Independent 
Person, Chris Willis. The Borough Solicitor has also provided copies of 
working drafts of the amended Code to Group Leaders and Deputy Group 
Leaders. 

  
1.4 The Borough Solicitor has taken into account comments and feedback as a 

result of the discussions set out above in preparing a revised version of the 
Code, which is appended to this report. The recommended changes to the 
Code capture amendments required as a result of the best practice 
recommendations of the Committee on Standards in Public Life as well as 
other proposed changes which have been identified to address 
shortcomings in the Code. 
 

2.0 Report 
 

2.1 The Committee on Standards in Public Life made a number of best 
practice recommendations and the Council wrote to the Committee 
Chairman, Lord Evans of Weardale, in late 2020 to set out how it intended 
to address those recommendations, which included a number of 
improvements and amendments to the Code. Previous reports to the 
Committee have set out in detail those best practice recommendations and 
the Council’s responses to all of those. This report and Appendix consider 
only those best practice recommendations that affect the Code. 
 

2.2 The Code has been reviewed, amended and improved to address certain 
of the best practice recommendations (BPR) as follows: 

 the prohibition on bullying has been widened to include harassment 
and also include explanatory commentary (BPR 1).  

 Wording has been added to make it clearer that Councillors agree to 
comply with any standards investigation and process, and so that an 
initial filtering panel will consider whether a complaint is trivial or 
malicious when assisting the Borough Solicitor with a determination 
that a complaint might amount to a breach of the Code of Conduct 
(BPR 2). 

Page 10



 This review constitutes a first annual review of the Code and is 
supplemented by the proposal to undertake a public consultation 
exercise to address BPR 3. 

 The approach to the consideration of complaints about Councillors 
has been improved by wording added to the complaints process in 
paragraph 4.1 to make it clear that there is a filtering process that 
will determine whether the complaint can proceed.  This explanatory 
text and links to the relevant documentation will be provided on the 
Council’s website to further clarify the approach for prospective 
complainants (BPR 6). 

 Wording has been added to the process to set out that a summary 
of an investigation report, including the outcome, regarding a 
complaint will be published on the Council’s website where a finding 
of no breach of the code of conduct is made (BPR 9). It should be 
noted that the process already sets out that a finding of a breach of 
the code of conduct would result in a hearing procedure at the 
Standards & Governance Committee and this would be in public. 

 Wording has been added to the process to make it clearer how 
anyone with accessibility requirements might use alternative means 
of making a complaint. This improved wording will be added to the 
Council’s website. Additional deadlines for the performance of 
certain actions during the conduct of a complaint have been added 
throughout the process. (BPR 10). 

 A statement has been added regarding how conflicts of interest will 
be addressed in the handling of a complaint (BPR 13). 

 
2.3 In considering the improvement to the wording to address BPR 1 it was 

considered that the Council should use the language proposed in the Local 
Government Association’s Model Code of Conduct (“the Model Code”). 
The Model Code provides additional wording to fully address the need for a 
prohibition on bullying and harassment as well as supporting commentary 
which is considered to be helpful in assisting Members, Officers and 
members of the public in understanding what the expectations are. Having 
considered the Model Code in relation to this first obligation it became 
apparent that the Council should consider a wholesale amendment of the 
Code to replace the existing general obligations of Members with the 
obligations set out in the Model Code. This is a fundamental change that 
provides for clearer obligations and higher standards of behaviour. It is 
considered that each of the previous general obligations of Members is 
covered in the new obligations, with the exception of the general obligation 
11 relating to local government publicity. To some extent this is covered by 
the new obligation 7, but where it is not, the general requirement for 
Members to comply with guidance regarding publicity is a requirement 
anyway so it is unnecessary for this to be reproduced in the Code of 
Conduct. 
 

2.3 In conducting the review, it also became apparent that the wording of the 
Nolan principles required updating to reflect the same wording that 
appears on the Government website. This has been changed accordingly. 
 

Page 11



2.4 
 

Some consideration and debate was given to the concept of how much 
time should be allowed to make a complaint regarding a Councillor’s 
conduct. The existing requirement is that only behaviour that has occurred 
in the previous six months since the complaint was made can be included. 
However, following discussions it was felt that this should be changed back 
to the previous cut off period of 12 months and that a complaint may be 
considered outside of this time restriction if exceptional circumstances 
applied. This brings the Councillor complaint process in line with the 
Council’s Corporate Complaints Process, which contains the same 
restriction. 
 

2.5 It is also proposed to reintroduce a pre-filtering stage so that certain 
complaints can be ruled as not capable of proceeding to an initial filtering 
panel by the Borough Solicitor in consultation with one of the Independent 
Persons. This is set out in paragraph 4.1 of the process and will remove 
the need to convene an Initial Filtering Panel for every complaint that is 
received. As a consequence, questions relating to these issues are 
removed from the Local Assessment criteria and no longer need to be 
considered by an Initial Filtering Panel. It applies to particular 
circumstances: 

 Is the person you are complaining about a Councillor who was in 
office at the time of the alleged conduct? 

 Did the conduct occur within the last twelve months, or are there 
exceptional circumstances why the complaint should be considered 
despite the conduct occurring more than twelve months previous to 
the complaint? 

 Is the conduct something that is covered by the Code of Conduct? 
 

2.6 It is proposed that the paragraphs in the complaints procedure which set 
out how a hearing of the Standards & Governance Committee will take 
place following an investigation report concluding there has been a breach 
of code should be reordered to make it clearer how the process is to work. 
 

2.7 A slight amendment has been made to the Local Assessment Criteria 
which set out the criteria by which an Initial Filtering Panel consider 
complaints. This makes the wording clearer in criterion 4 regarding the 
consideration of a repeated pattern of behaviour. 
 

2.8 No changes have been made regarding the sanctions that can be applied 
by a hearing of the Standards & Governance Committee. No changes are 
proposed to the way in which the Council deals with Members’ interests. 
 

2.9 As set out above in paragraph 2.2, it is proposed that the Code of Conduct 
for Members is subject to a public consultation exercise for the four weeks 
following this report being taken to the Committee for consideration. This 
will allow for compliance with the BPR 3 and ensure that the Council is 
both publicising its intentions and taking public views on the changes. 
Ideally this will enable the amended Code to pass on for consideration and 
approval by the Policy & Organisation Board and Full Council before the 
end of the municipal year. 

Page 12



 
3.0 Risk Assessment 

 
3.1 By carrying out a review of the Code the Council has complied with the 

assurances provided to the Committee on Standards in Public Life. The 
report proposes changes to be made to the Code which will improve the 
standards of behaviour required of Members. If the recommendations are 
not approved the Council will revert to the existing Code and it is arguable 
that the Council is falling short of its duty to pursue continuous 
improvement. 
 

4.0 Conclusion 
 

 This report sets out the recommendations which are proposed to the Code 
and a consultation exercise to see whether members of the public have 
any views regarding the proposals. 
 

 

Financial Services comments: None 

Legal Services comments: Contained within the report. 

Equality and Diversity: See IIA attached (revised from previous report) 

Climate Change implications: None – see IIA attached 

Crime and Disorder: None 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

N/A 

Corporate Plan: Empower our residents – good citizenship 
Deliver effective services - continually review 
and improve our services 

Risk Assessment: See section 3. 

Background Papers: Standards and Governance Committee report 
19 November 2020. 
Committee on Standards in Public Life, Lord 
Weardale and others January 2019. 
Standards and Governance Committee report 
18 November 2021. 

Appendices: Appendix A – amended Code 
Appendix B - IIA  

Report Author/Lead Officer: Paul Grant, Borough Solicitor & Monitoring 
Officer 

 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Schedule 17 

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 

Part 1: General Provisions and Interpretation Introduction 

This Code of Conduct is adopted by Gosport Borough Council ("the Council") 

pursuant to its statutory duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by 

Members and Co-opted Members ("Members") and individually (“Member”) of the 

Council.  

Members accept and agree to comply with the Constitution upon commencing their 

term of office, including this Code of Conduct in Chapter 2.03.01 of the Constitution. 

For clarification this includes compliance with the consideration of a complaint made 

against them, or another Member, as set out in Appendix 1 to this Schedule 17 of the 

Constitution to enable the facilitation of the complaints process within the timeframes 

set out in Appendix 1. 

This Code is based on and is consistent with the Seven Principles of Public Life (also 
known as the Nolan Principles). 

SELFLESSNESS: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public 

interest.  

INTEGRITY: Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any 

obligation to people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them 

in their work. They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other 

material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must declare and 

resolve any interests and relationships. 

OBJECTIVITY: Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, 

fairly and on merit, using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 

ACCOUNTABILITY: Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their 

decisions and actions and must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to 

ensure this. 

OPENNESS: Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and 

transparent manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there 

are clear and lawful reasons for so doing. 

HONESTY: Holders of public office should be truthful. 

LEADERSHIP: Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own 

behaviour and treat others with respect. They should actively promote and robustly 

support the principles and challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs. 

APPENDIX A

Page 15



 
 

 

Obligations of Members  
 

 

1. Respect 
 

As a councillor: 
 

1.1 I treat other councillors and members of the public with respect. 
 

1.2 I treat local authority employees, employees and representatives of partner 
organisations and those volunteering for the local authority with respect and 
respect the role they play. 

 
Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in the written word. 
Debate and having different views are all part of a healthy democracy. As a councillor, 
you can express, challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas, opinions and 
policies in a robust but civil manner. You should not, however, subject individuals, 
groups of people or organisations to personal attack. 
 
In your contact with the public, you should treat them politely and courteously. Rude 
and offensive behaviour lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in councillors. 
 
In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from the public. If members of 
the public are being abusive, intimidatory or threatening you are entitled to stop any 
conversation or interaction in person or online and report them to the local authority, 
the relevant social media provider or the police. This also applies to fellow councillors, 
where action could then be taken under the Councillor Code of Conduct, and local 
authority employees, where concerns should be raised in line with the local authority’s 
councillor-officer protocol. 

 
2. Bullying, harassment and discrimination 

 
As a councillor: 
 

     2.1 I do not bully any person. 

 
               2.2 I do not harass any person. 

 
               2.3 I promote equalities and do not discriminate unlawfully against any person. 

 
      The Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS) characterises bullying as 

    offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power 
through means that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. Bullying 
might be a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off incident, happen face-to-face, on 
social media, in emails or phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social events 
and may not always be obvious or noticed by others. 
 
The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 defines harassment as conduct that causes 
alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence and must involve such conduct on 
at least two occasions. It can include repeated attempts to impose unwanted 
communications and contact upon a person in a manner that could be expected to 
cause distress or fear in any reasonable person. 
 
Unlawful discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a protected 
characteristic. Protected characteristics are specific aspects of a person's 

Page 16



 
 

 

identity defined by the Equality Act 2010. They are age, disability, gender reassignment, 
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex 
and sexual orientation. 
 
The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on local authorities. Councillors have a 
central role to play in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the local authority's 
performance and strategic aims, and that there is a strong vision and public commitment 
to equality. 

 
3.    Impartiality of officers of the council 

     
As a councillor: 

 
3.1 I do not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of 
anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the local authority. 
 
Officers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral (unless 
they are political assistants). They should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a way 
that would undermine their neutrality. You can question officers in order to understand, 
for example, their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of a 
report that they have written. However, you must not try and force them to act differently, 
change their advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so would prejudice their 
professional integrity. 

 
4. Confidentiality and access to information 

 
As a councillor: 

 
4.1 I do not disclose information: 

a. given to me in confidence by anyone 
b. acquired by me which I believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of a   
confidential nature, unless 

i. I have received the consent of a person authorised to give it; 
ii. I am required by law to do so; 
iii. the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of 
    obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third 
    party agrees not to disclose the information to any other 

                                    person; or 
iv. the disclosure is: 

1. reasonable and in the public interest; and 
2.made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable       
requirements of the local authority; and 
3. I have consulted the Monitoring Officer prior to its release. 
 

4.2 I do not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of my role as a 
councillor for the advancement of myself, my friends, my family members, 
my employer or my business interests. 

 
4.3 I do not prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled to by 

law. 
 

Local authorities must work openly and transparently, and their proceedings and printed 
materials are open to the public, except in certain legally defined circumstances. You 
should work on this basis, but there will be times when it is required by law that 

Page 17



 
 

 

discussions, documents and other information relating to or held by the local authority 
must be treated in a confidential manner. Examples include personal data relating to 
individuals or information relating to ongoing negotiations. 

 
 

5. Disrepute 
 

As a councillor: 
 
5.1 I do not bring my role or local authority into disrepute. 
 

As a Councillor, you are trusted to make decisions on behalf of your community and 
your actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary 
members of the public. You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse 
impact on you, other councillors and/or your local authority and may lower the public’s 
confidence in your or your local authority’s ability to discharge your/its functions. For 
example, behaviour that is considered dishonest and/or deceitful can bring your local 
authority into disrepute. 
 
You are able to hold the local authority and fellow councillors to account and are able 
to constructively challenge and express concern about decisions and processes 
undertaken by the council whilst continuing to adhere to other aspects of this Code of 
Conduct. 
 

6. Use of position 
 

As a councillor: 
 
6.1 I do not use, or attempt to use, my position improperly to the advantage or 
disadvantage of myself or anyone else. 
 
Your position as a member of the local authority provides you with certain opportunities, 
responsibilities, and privileges, and you make choices all the time that will impact others. 
However, you should not take advantage of these opportunities to further your own or 
others’ private interests or to disadvantage anyone unfairly. 

 
7. Use of local authority resources and facilities 

 
As a councillor: 

 
7.1 I do not misuse council resources. 
 
7.2 I will, when using the resources of the local authority or authorising their use 
by others: 

a. act in accordance with the local authority's requirements; and 
b. ensure that such resources are not used for political purposes unless 
that use could reasonably be regarded as likely to facilitate, or be 
conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the local authority or of 
the office to which I have been elected or appointed. 
 

You may be provided with resources and facilities by the local authority to assist you in 
carrying out your duties as a councillor. 
 
Examples include: 

Page 18



 
 

 

• office support 
• stationery 
• equipment such as phones, and computers 
• transport 
• access and use of local authority buildings and rooms. 

 
These are given to you to help you carry out your role as a councillor more effectively 
and are not to be used for business or personal gain. They should be used in accordance 
with the purpose for which they have been provided and the local authority’s own policies 
regarding their use. 
 
 

 8. Complying with the Code of Conduct 
 

As a Councillor: 
 

8.1 I undertake Code of Conduct training provided by my local authority. 
 

8.2 I cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or 
      determination. 

 
8.3 I do not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to be 
      involved with the administration of any investigation or proceedings. 

 
8.4 I comply with any sanction imposed on me following a finding that I have 
      breached the Code of Conduct. 

 
It is extremely important for you as a councillor to demonstrate high standards, for you 
to have your actions open to scrutiny and for you not to undermine public trust in the local 
authority or its governance. If you do not understand or are concerned about the local 
authority’s processes in handling a complaint you should raise this with the Monitoring 
Officer. 
 

Protecting your reputation and the reputation of the local authority 
 

9. Interests 
 

As a councillor: 
 

9.1 I register and disclose my interests. 
 
Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and 
maintain a register of interests of members of the authority . 
 
You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and 
fellow councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest. The 
register is a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises. The 
register also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a willingness to 
be held accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding whether or not you 
should disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if 
others think that a potential conflict might arise. It is also important that the public know 
about any 

Page 19



 
 

 

interest that might have to be disclosed by you or other councillors when making or taking 
part in decisions, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest. This 
helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained. 
 
 
You should note that failure to register or disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest as set 
out in Part 2, is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011. 
Parts 2 -7 set out the detailed provisions on registering and disclosing interests. If in 
doubt, you should always seek advice from the Monitoring Officer. 
 

 
 

10. Gifts and hospitality 
 

As a councillor: 
 

10.1 I do not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value, which 
        could give rise to real or substantive personal gain or a reasonable 
        suspicion of influence on my part to show favour from persons seeking to 
        acquire, develop or do business with the local authority or from persons 
        who may apply to the local authority for any permission, licence or other 
        significant advantage. 

 
10.2 I register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with an 
        estimated value of at least £50 within 28 days of its receipt. 

 
10.3 I register with the Monitoring Officer any significant gift or 
        hospitality that I have been offered but have refused to accept. 

 
In order to protect your position and the reputation of the local authority, you should 
exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are (or which you reasonably 
believe to be) offered to you because you are a councillor. The presumption should 
always be not to accept significant gifts or hospitality. However, there may be times 
when such a refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in which case you could 
accept it but must ensure it is publicly registered. However, you do not need to register 
gifts and hospitality which are not related to your role as a councillor, such as Christmas 
gifts from your friends and family. It is also important to note that it is appropriate to 
accept normal expenses and hospitality associated with your duties as a councillor. If 
you are unsure, do contact the Monitoring Officer for guidance. 

 
Scope 
 

 

This Code applies to all Members of the Council when acting in their official capacity, 

or when giving the impression that they are acting as a representative of the Council. 
 

 

Where a Member is a member of more than one local authority, but acting on behalf of 

the Council, such Member is, for the avoidance of doubt, bound by this Code of 

Conduct. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 
 

 

 

Part 2: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests ("DPI") 
 
              Introduction 
 

 

A DPI is an interest falling within the Schedule set out at Paragraph 3 below of: 
 

 

2.1       Yourself; or 
 

 

2.2       Your spouse or civil partner, or someone you are living with as if you were 

                         husband and wife or civil partners, where you are aware that that other  

                         person has the interest. 
 

 

              Interpretation 
 

 

In the Schedule set out at Paragraph 3 below, the following words or expressions 

mean as follows: 
 

 

2.3      ‘the Act’ means the Localism Act 2011; 
 

 

2.4       ‘body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest’ means a firm in            

      which the relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the    

      relevant person is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant  

      person has a beneficial interest; 
 

 

2.5      ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial  

      and provident society; 
 

 

2.6 ‘land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which 

does not carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with 

another) to occupy the land or to receive income; 

 
2.7 ‘Member’ includes a co-opted member; 

 

 

2.8 ‘relevant authority’ means Gosport Borough Council of which the councillor is 

a member; 
 

 

2.9 ‘relevant period’ means the period of 12 months ending with the day on 

which the councillor gives a notification for the purposes of Section 30(1) or 

Section 31(7), as the case may be, of the Act; 
 

 

2.10 ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, 

units of a collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial 

Services and Markets Act 2001 and other securities of any description, other 

than money deposited with a building society. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



 
 

 

 

 
DPI Schedule 

 

 

Subject                                Prescribed description 

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 

trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and 

Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992(2). 
 

 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person 

(or a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial 

interest) and the relevant authority: 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided 

or works are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of 

the relevant authority. 
 

 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in 

the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Councillor’s knowledge): 

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person 

has a beneficial interest. 
  

 

Securities    Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where: 

(a) that body (to the Councillor’s knowledge) has a place 
of business or land in the area of the relevant authority; 
and (b) either: 
(i) the total nominal value of the securities 

exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total 

issued share capital of that body; or 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more 

than one class, the total nominal value of the 

shares of any one class in which the 

relevant person has a beneficial interest 

exceeds one hundredth of the total issued 

share capital of that class. 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation 
carried on for profit or gain. 

 

Sponsorship 
 

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit 

(other than from the relevant authority) made or 

provided within the relevant period in respect of any 

expenses incurred by the councillor in carrying out 

duties as a Member, or towards the election expenses 

of the councillor. 

 

Page 22



 
 

 

 

Part 3: Registration and Disclosure of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests ("DPI") 
 

 

Obligations 
 

 

3.1          You must, within 28 days of taking office as a Member of the Council, supply  

   the Council’s Monitoring Officer with details of any DPI as set out at Part 3 of  

  this Code. 
 

 

3.2 You must also, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new DPI notify 

Gosport Borough Council's Monitoring Officer of any change. 
 

 

3.3 If you have an interest included on the Register of Members’ Interests, you must 
disclose this interest at any meeting of the Council, its Committees at which you 
are present and participating in the business. 

Where an interest is a ‘sensitive interest’2 you need only disclose the fact that you 
have a DPI in the matter being considered and do not need to disclose 
details of the interest itself. 
 

 

3.4 If you have not yet registered a DPI, then you must also disclose the interest to any 

meeting of Gosport Borough Council, its Boards or Committees at which you are 

present where you have such a DPI in any matter being considered. 
 

 

3.5 Unless a dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any meeting 

where that DPI is required to be disclosed (this would include making a deputation), 

discussed, voted on, or discharge any function related to any matter in which you 

have a DPI and must withdraw from the room where the meeting considering the 

business is being held, unless a dispensation3 has been granted by the Monitoring 

Officer.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
A ‘sensitive interest’ is described in the Localism Act 2011 as a member or co-opted member of an authority having an 

interest (disclosable pecuniary interest or otherwise), and the nature of the interest being such that the Member or Co- 

Opted Member, and the Authority’s Monitoring Officer, consider that disclosure of the details of the interest could lead to 

the Member or Co-Opted Member, or a person connected with the Member or Co-Opted Member, being subject to 

violence or intimidation.  
3
Dispensation procedure. Where a Councillor considers that a dispensation is required that application should be 

brought by the Monitoring Officer to the next meeting of the Standards and Governance Committee for consideration 

where it is not possible to do so and comply with the rules in relation to the access to information for meetings, the 

Councillor may apply to the MO who may grant the dispensation if the MO considers this to be appropriate in 

consultation with the Chairman of Standards and Governance Committee  

 

Page 23



 
 

 

 
 
 
Part 4 

 
4 Personal interests 

4.1 You have a personal interest in the business of the Council when it 

relates to or is likely to affect: 

 
a any body of which you are a member or in a position of general 

control or management, and to any outside body which you are 

appointed or nominated by the Council. 

 
b any body of which you are a member or in a position of general 

control or management 

 

i exercising functions of a public 

nature;  

ii directed to charitable purposes; or 

iii one of whose principal purposes includes the influence 

of public opinion or policy (including any political party or 

trade union); 

 

 
c any employment or business carried on by you other than for 

profit or gain; 
 

 

d any person or body who employs you, or who has appointed 

you, other than for profit or gain; 

 
e the interests of any person from whom you have received a gift 

or hospitality with an estimated value of at least £50 in the last 

three years;  
 

 

4.2 You also have a personal interest in the business of the Council when a 

decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as 

affecting your well-being or financial position, or the well-being or financial 

position of a relevant person (as defined at paragraph 4.3 below), to a 

greater extent than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or 

inhabitants of the electoral ward within the administrative area of the Council 

affected by the decision; 

 
4.3 In Paragraph 4.2, a “relevant person” is: 

 

 

a your spouse or civil partner, or someone you are living with as if 

you were husband and wife or civil partners, where you are aware 

that that other person has the interest; or 

 

b another member of your family, or any person with whom you 

have a close association, where you are aware that that other 

person has the interest; or 

Page 24



 
 

 

 

c any person or body who employs or has appointed such 

persons, any firm in which they are a partner, or any company of 

which they are directors; or 

 

d any person or body in whom to the Member’s knowledge such 

persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities 

exceeding the nominal value of £25,000: or 

 

e any body of a type described in paragraph 4.1a or 4.1b above. 

 

Part 5 
 

 

    Disclosure of Personal Interests 
 

 

5.1      Subject to paragraphs 5.2 to 5.3 below, where you have a personal  interest  

                                     in any business of the Council you must disclose this interest at any  

                                         meeting of the Council, Boards or Committees (including joint committees  

                                          and sub-committees) at which you are present. Such interest should be  

                                        disclosed at the commencement of the consideration of the business or  

                                       when the interest becomes apparent. 

 

             5.2        The requirement to declare a personal interest only applies where you  

                          are aware or ought reasonably to be aware of the existence of the  

                            personal interest. 
 

            5.3        Disclosure of a personal interest does not affect the ability of the Member to  
                         participate in discussion or vote on the relevant item, providing it is not a  
                         disclosable pecuniary interest.   

 
 

Part 6 
 

 

               Prejudicial Interests 
 

 

    Definition of Prejudicial Interest. 
 

 

Subject to paragraph 7.2 below, where you have a personal interest in any business 

of the Council, or Monitoring Officer where appropriate you also have a prejudicial 

interest in that business when the interest is one which a member of the public with 

knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is 

likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 

 
6.1    Limitation on extent of prejudicial interests 

 

 

You do not have a prejudicial interest in any business of the Council where 

that business-: 

 
a does not affect your financial position, or the financial position 

of a body or relevant person as described in Part 4 of this 

Code; or 

Page 25



 
 

 

 

b does not relate to the determining of any approval, consent, 

licence, permission or registration in relation to you or a body 

or relevant person as described in Part 4 of this Code; or 
 

 

c relates to the functions of the Council in respect of:- 
 

 

i housing, where you are a tenant of the Council provided 

that those functions do not relate particularly to your 

tenancy or lease; 

ii statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security 

Contributions and Benefits Act 1992, where you are 

in receipt of or are entitled to the receipt of such pay; 

iii an allowance, payment or indemnity given to members; 

iv any ceremonial honour given to Members; and 

 

v setting council tax or a precept under the Local 

Government Finance Act 1992. 
 
 

Part 7 
 

 

                                   Effect of Prejudicial Interests on Participation 
 

 

Unless a dispensation has been granted by the Council’s Standard’s and 

Governance Committee or the Monitoring Officer, you may not participate in any 

discussion of, vote on, or discharge any function related to any matter in which you 

have a personal interest which is also a prejudicial interest (as set out at Part 6 of 

this Code), and must as soon as it becomes apparent that you have such an 

interest (save for in circumstances set out at paragraph  7.2                                       

below) withdraw from the room where the meeting considering the business is 

being held, and must not seek improperly to influence a decision about that 

business.  

 
7.2 Without prejudice to paragraph 7.1 above, where you have a prejudicial 

interest in any business of the Council you may, notwithstanding such 

prejudicial interest, attend such meeting for the purpose of making 

representations, answering questions or giving evidence relating to such 

business, provided members of the public are also allowed to attend the 

meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or 

otherwise. 
 

 

7.3 For the avoidance of doubt the procedure in paragraph 7.2 above cannot 

be used by the Member where the interest comes within the statutory 

definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. 

 
7.4 In any case where paragraph 7.2 above applies, you must withdraw from 

the room immediately after making representations, answering questions, 

or giving evidence. 

Page 26



  PART 4 - SCHEDULE 17 

 

 
 

Schedule 17 - Appendix 1 
 

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH ALLEGATIONS OF 
BREACHES OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS 

 
1 CONTEXT 
 
1.1 These arrangements set out how you may make a complaint that an 

elected or co-opted Member of Gosport Borough Council (“the 
Council”) has failed to comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct, 
and set out how the Council will deal with allegations of a failure to 
comply with the Council’s Code of Conduct as required by Sections 
29(6) and (7) of the Localism Act 2011. 

 
1.2 Such arrangements must provide for the Council to appoint at least 

one Independent Person (‘IP’), whose views must be sought by the 
Council before it takes a decision on an allegation which it has 
decided shall be investigated, and whose views can be sought by 
the Council at any other stage, or by a Member or Co-opted Member 
against whom an allegation has been made. In practice the Council 
requires two IPs in order to form an Initial Filtering Panel for the 
consideration of complaints made by one Member against another. 

 
2 CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
2.1 The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for Members, which is 

Schedule 17 to the Constitution and which is available for inspection 
on the Council’s website and at the Town Hall. 

 
3. MAKING A COMPLAINT 
 
3.1 Complaints must be submitted in writing and addressed to the 

Monitoring Officer, as set out below. This includes submission by 
email. However, in line with the requirements of the Equality Act 
2010, we can make reasonable adjustments to assist you if you 
have a disability that prevents you from making your complaint in 
writing. 
 
We can also help if English is not your first language. 
 
If you need any support in completing this form, please let the 
Monitoring Officer know as soon as possible. 
 

 The Monitoring Officer 
 Gosport Borough Council 
 Town Hall 
 High Street 

Page 27



  PART 4 - SCHEDULE 17 

 

 Gosport   
 Hampshire 
 PO12 1EB 
           Monitoringofficer@gosport.gov.uk  
 
 Our full Accessibility Statement can be found: 
 
 https://www.gosport.gov.uk/article/1954/Accessibility-statement  
 
 
3.2 The Monitoring Officer is a senior officer of the Council who has 

statutory responsibility for maintaining the register of Members’ 
interests and who is responsible for administering the system in 
respect of complaints of Member misconduct. At the outset of the 
consideration of any complaint the Monitoring Officer will consider 
whether any conflict of interest prevents them from dealing with the 
matter and whether the Deputy Monitoring Officer or another Officer 
– or the Monitoring Officer of another Council - should be appointed 
to act instead of the Monitoring Officer in the consideration of the 
complaint in accordance with the rules in this Appendix 1 to 
Schedule 17 of the Constitution.  

 
3.3 Ideally in order to ensure that we have all the information which we 

need to be able to process a complaint, please complete and send 
us the model complaint form, which can be downloaded from the 
Council’s website, www.gosport.gov.uk, and is available on request 
from Reception at the Town Hall. If you do not provide us with 
information that enables us to process a complaint the Monitoring 
Officer may write to you to request further information before the 
matter can proceed. 

 
3.4 Please provide us with your name and a contact address or email 

address so that we can acknowledge receipt of your complaint and 
keep you informed of its progress.  If you want to keep your name 
and address confidential, please indicate this in the space provided 
on the complaint form.  

 
3.5 The Council does not routinely investigate anonymous complaints 

and there will need to be a justification for doing so. The 
considerations that the Monitoring Officer will make for agreeing to a 
request of the Complainant in remaining anonymous are considered 
at Appendix 3 to this schedule. 

 
3.6 Once we have all of the information that we need to proceed, the 

Monitoring Officer will confirm the start date of your complaint within 
5 working days of receiving such information, and will keep you 
informed of the progress of your complaint. 

 

Page 28

mailto:Monitoringofficer@gosport.gov.uk
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/article/1954/Accessibility-statement
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/


  PART 4 - SCHEDULE 17 

 

3.7    The Monitoring Officer will advise the Member that is the subject of 
the complaint of the complaint within 5 working days of the start date 
referred to in 3.6 above.  

 
4.        WILL YOUR COMPLAINT BE INVESTIGATED? 
  
4.1 On receiving your complaint the Monitoring Officer will need to consider 

whether the Council can take the matter further. The Monitoring Officer 
will first consider with an Independent Person whether your complaint 
can be looked into and if it meets the following tests: 

 Is the person you are complaining about a Councillor who was in 
office at the time of the alleged conduct? 

 Did the conduct occur within the last twelve months, or are there 
exceptional circumstances why the complaint should be considered 
despite the conduct occurring more than twelve months previous to 
the complaint? 

 Is the conduct something that is covered by the Code of Conduct? 
 

If the answers to any of these questions is ‘no’ then the matter cannot 
proceed as a complaint under the Code of Conduct and the Monitoring 
Officer will inform you within 10 working days of the start date of that 
conclusion. 
 

4.2 If the Monitoring Officer concludes that the complaint can proceed then 
as soon as practicable, the Monitoring Officer shall establish an Initial 
Filtering Panel to assist in the consideration of the complaint and will 
inform you within 10 working days of the start date that the Initial 
Filtering Panel will be convened. 
 

4.3 The Initial Filtering Panel is an informal meeting to enable the 
Monitoring Officer to obtain the views of Councillors and/or Independent 
Persons upon a complaint.  It shall be made up of three Councillors 
drawn from members of the Standards and Governance committee 
including standing deputies and would normally include the Chairman or 
Deputy Chairman of the Committee.  An Independent Person will also 
be invited to attend and express their view on the complaint. 
 

4.4 When it is a complaint by a Councillor of this Authority against another 
Councillor, the Initial Filtering Panel shall comprise at least two 
Independent Persons who will be invited to attend and express their 
view on the complaint.  No Councillors will be present. 
 

4.5 Having considered the complaint against the Local Assessment Criteria 
at Appendix 2 and taking into account the views of the Councillors and 
Independent Person(s) (as appropriate), the Monitoring Officer will:- 
 

 4.5.1 
 

arrange a formal investigation of the complaint; or 
 

4.5.2 require that the Councillor undertake training or seek 
conciliation with the Complainant; or such other 

Page 29



  PART 4 - SCHEDULE 17 

 

appropriate alternative steps; or 
 

4.5.3 decide that no action should be taken in respect of the 
complaint. 
 

4.6 The Monitoring Officer will take reasonable steps to notify the person 
making the complaint (“the Complainant”) and the Councillor of the 
decision within 25 working days of the start date. 
 

4.7 When the conclusion is that no action should be taken, the complainant 
will be advised of their right to request a Standards and Governance 
Assessment Sub-Committee to consider the decision, under paragraph 
5 below.   

4.8 When it is decided to investigate or take other action, it does not mean 
that the Monitoring Officer has come to a conclusion about the 
complaint: the Monitoring Officer makes no findings of fact on the 
complaint.  It simply means that the Monitoring Officer believes the 
alleged conduct, if proven, may amount to a failure to comply with the 
Code of Conduct, and that some action should be taken in response to 
the complaint. 
 

4.8 If your complaint identifies criminal conduct or breach of other 
regulation by any person, the Monitoring Officer or any other 
Officer will refer the complaint to the Police or other regulatory 
agencies.  If you consider there has been criminal conduct then 
you may go directly to the Police or other regulatory agency. 

 
 

5. RIGHT TO REQUEST A STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE 
ASSESSMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

5.1. Where a decision is made by the Monitoring Officer that no action 
should be taken in respect of the complaint, the Complainant may make 
a request for the complaint to be considered by a Standards and 
Governance Assessment Sub-Committee.  The request shall be made 
in writing addressed to the Monitoring Officer.  The request must be 
received within 10 working days of notification being given under 
paragraph 4.6 above. 
 

6. CONVENING OF MEETING OF STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE 
ASSESSMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

6.1 If the Complainant requests a Standards and Governance Assessment 
Sub-Committee in accordance with paragraph 5.1 above, the 
Monitoring Officer shall notify the Councillor that such a request has 
been received. 
 

6.2 The Monitoring Officer shall appoint, and convene a meeting of the 
Standards and Governance Assessment Sub-Committee, (“the 
Assessment Sub-Committee”).  The meeting shall take place within 20 

Page 30



  PART 4 - SCHEDULE 17 

 

working days of the date of receipt of the request for an Assessment 
Sub-Committee to meet, where practicable. 
 

6.3 The Assessment Sub-Committee shall comprise three Councillors 
drawn from members of the Standards and Governance Committee. An 
Independent Person will also be invited to attend and express their view 
upon the complaint. 
 

  
7 PROCEDURE FOR HEARINGS OF STANDARDS AND 

GOVERNANCE ASSESSMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

7.1 The Standards and Governance Assessment Sub-Committee is 
established to consider the complaint “afresh”. 
 

7.2 Upon receipt of such request for an Assessment Sub-Committee to 
consider the complaint, by the Complainant the Standards and 
Governance Assessment Sub-Committee shall, within 20 working days 
where practicable, consider the complaint and do one of the following:- 
 

 7.2.1 refer the complaint to the Monitoring Officer with an instruction 
that he/she: 
          
       a. arrange a formal investigation of the complaint; or 
 
       b. require that the Councillor should undertake training or 
seek   conciliation with the Complainant; or such other 
appropriate alternative steps; or 
 

   7.2.2 decide that no action should be taken in respect of the 
complaint. 
 

7.3 In reaching its decision, the Sub-Committee shall have regard to the 
Local Assessment Criteria and the views of the Independent Person. 
The decision of the Assessment Sub-Committee is final and there is no 
further review. 
 

7.4 The Sub-Committee shall instruct the Monitoring Officer to take 
reasonable steps to notify the Complainant, and the Councillor 
concerned, of their decision.  Where the decision is that no action 
should be taken, reasons for the decision shall be given.  This 
notification shall normally be given within 10 working days of the 
decision being made. 
 

Page 31



  PART 4 - SCHEDULE 17 

 

7.5 When a matter is referred for investigation or other action, it does not 
mean that the Sub-Committee has made up its mind about the 
complaint: the Sub-Committee makes no findings of fact on the 
complaint.  It simply means that the Sub-Committee believes the 
alleged conduct, if proven, may amount to a failure to comply with the 
Code of Conduct, and that some action should be taken in response to 
the complaint. 

 
8. REFERRAL FOR INVESTIGATION 

 
8.1 Where there has been a decision to refer the complaint for investigation, 

the Monitoring Officer shall arrange for such investigation to be carried 
out by the Deputy Monitoring Officer, or other person the Monitoring 
Officer considers to be suitably qualified and experienced to undertake 
the task (“the Investigating Officer”). This may include:- 
 

 8.1.1 making inquiries of such persons as the Investigating Officer 
considers necessary or expedient; 
 

 8.1.2 requiring such persons to give such information or explanation 
as the Investigating Officer considers expedient; 
 

 8.1.3 inspection of such documents as the Investigating Officer 
considers expedient. 
 

8.2 The Monitoring Officer may set up a Sub-Committee to consider its 
further progress if the Councillor is unable to attend due to illness and is 
of the opinion that it is no longer appropriate to continue with the 
investigation. Where the matter is referred back to the Sub-Committee 
they may decide not to proceed with the investigation. 
 

8.3 On completion of an investigation, the Investigating Officer shall prepare 
a written report of the investigation making one of the following findings 
that:- 

 

 8.3.1 there has been a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct;    
or 

   8.3.2 there has not been a failure to comply with the Code of 
Conduct. 
 

8.4 The Monitoring Officer shall send a copy of the Investigating Officer’s 
report to the Councillor. 
 

8.5 The Investigation shall be conducted in a timely manner and 
compliance with the investigation is expected from Members and 
Officers so as to enable a final report to be issued within 2 months of 
confirming to the complainant that an Investigation shall take place. If 
the Investigating Officer is unable to keep to this timeframe the 
Monitoring Officer will inform the complainant of a revised deadline. 
 

Page 32



  PART 4 - SCHEDULE 17 

 

 
9. INVESTIGATING OFFICER’S FINDINGS OF NO FAILURE TO 

COMPLY WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

9.1 In the event that the Investigating Officer finds that there is no failure to 
comply with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer shall consult 
with the Initial Filtering Panel or Assessment Sub Committee as 
appropriate and if the Initial Filtering Panel or Assessment Sub 
Committee, accepts the Investigating Officer's findings, the 
Investigating Officer shall give written notice of this to the Complainant 
and the Councillor within 10 working days of receipt of the Investigation 
Report. A summary of the investigation report will be published on the 
Council’s website within 15 working days of receipt of the investigation 
report. 
 

9.2 In the event that the finding is not accepted, the Initial Filtering Panel or 
Assessment Sub-Committee may give further directions to the 
Monitoring Officer as appropriate and the Monitoring Officer will update 
the Councillor and Complainant as appropriate. 
 
 

10. A FINDING OF A BREACH OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

10.1 Where the Investigating Officer finds that there has been a failure to 
comply with the Code of Conduct the matter will be referred for 
consideration at a hearing of the Standards and Governance 
Committee as detailed further in paragraphs 11-15 below. 
 

  
11. HEARING OF THE STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE  

 
11.1 The hearing is a formal meeting of the Council and is not a court of law. 

It does not hear evidence under oath, but it does decide factual 
evidence on the balance of probabilities. The hearing will be conducted 
in a demonstrably fair, independent and politically way, so that 
members of the public and Councillors have confidence in the Council’s 
procedures and findings. 
 

12. PRE HEARING PROCEDURE 
 

12.1 The Monitoring Officer shall write to the Councillor proposing a date for 
the hearing. The letter shall outline the hearing procedure, and the 
Councillor’s rights, asking for a response within a set time. In the event 
that the Councillor does not respond within the timescale given, the 
Monitoring Officer may proceed to establish the hearing without further 
reference to the Councillor and if necessary in the absence of the 
Councillor. The letter shall enquire whether the Councillor: 
 

 12.1.1  can attend the hearing; 
 12.1.2 wants to be represented at the hearing; 

Page 33



  PART 4 - SCHEDULE 17 

 

 12.1.3 disagrees with any of the findings in the investigation report, 
including reasons for any disagreements; 

 12.1.4 wants to give evidence at the hearing, either verbally or in 
writing; 

 12.1.5 wants to call relevant witnesses to give evidence and. If so, 
to provide outlines or statements of the evidence those 
witnesses intend to give; 

 12.1.6 wants any part of the hearing to be held in exempt session; 
 12.1.7 wants to have any part of the investigation report or other 

documents withheld from the public. 
 

12.2 The Monitoring Officer shall send a copy of the Councillor’s response to 
the Investigating Officer, inviting him/her to say by a set date whether 
they wish to:- 

 12.2.1 be represented at the hearing; 
 12.2.2 call relevant witnesses to give evidence; 
 12.2.3 have any part of the hearing held in exempt session; and 
 12.2.4 have any part of the investigation report or other documents 

withheld from the public. 
 

12.3 The Monitoring Officer shall advise the Hearing as necessary on any 
matter arising out of the responses received. At least two weeks before 
the Hearing, the Monitoring Officer shall write to the parties and advise 
them of the procedure which is to be followed at the hearing. 

  
13. TERM OF REFERENCE OF HEARINGS OF THE STANDARDS AND 

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (“THE HEARING”) 
 

13.1 The hearing is established and held to make one of the following 
findings:- 

 13.1.1 that the Councillor did not fail to comply with the Code of 
Conduct; or 

 13.1.2 that the Councillor did fail to comply with the Code of 
Conduct, but that no action needs to be taken in respect of 
the matters considered at the hearing; or 

 13.1.3 that the Councillor did fail to comply with the Code of 
Conduct and that one of, or any combination of, the following 
sanctions should be imposed:- 

  13.1.3.1 censure of the Councillor 
  13.1.3.2 Restriction for a period not exceeding six 

months of the Councillor’s access to Council 
premises or Councillor’s use of Council 
resources, provided that those restrictions are 
reasonable and proportionate to the nature of 
the breach, and do not unduly restrict the 
Councillor’s ability to perform the functions of a 
Councillor. 

  13.1.3.3 request to the Councillor’s Group Leader 
(where applicable) removal from any position 
on the Council or an outside body to which they 

Page 34



  PART 4 - SCHEDULE 17 

 

have been appointed; 
  13.1.3.4 reports its findings to the Council. 

 
13.2 Any sanction imposed shall take effect immediately, except where the 

Sub-Committee directs that it shall take effect on a later date within the 
following six months. 

  
14. HEARING PROCEDURE 

 
14.1 Hearings will where possible be held within two months of receipt by the 

Monitoring Officer of the Investigating Officer’s final report. 
 

14.2 The Hearing will be before the Standards and Governance Committee. 
 

14.3 The Independent Person (IP) appointed under Section 28 of the 
Localism Act 2011 will also be present.  Their views will be requested 
and taken into account by the Hearing, but by law they cannot vote. 
 

14.4 The Monitoring Officer or Deputy Monitoring Officer will be present 
as legal advisor to the Hearing. 
 

14.5 The Investigating Officer’s report should normally provide the Hearing 
with all the available information, but they may call such witnesses as 
they consider necessary.  Both the Councillor and complainant will be 
invited to attend. 
 

14.6 The Councillor may present their own case or be represented.   
 

14.7 Written statements from all witnesses called by the Investigating 
Officer or the Councillor must be lodged with the Monitoring 
Officer no later than 10 working days before the hearing.  
Character witnesses who cannot provide evidence on the matter 
complained about will not be permitted. 
 

14.8 The cost of any attendance or representation must be borne by 
the party concerned. 
 

14.9 All written evidence will be circulated to the Members of the 
Standards and Governance Committee, as they will form the 
Hearing panel, unless they have an interest in the complaint that 
precludes their involvement as part of the Hearing panel, the IP, 
the Councillor and the complainant at least five working days 
before the hearing. 
 

14.10 Written statements will not be read out at the hearing, as it will be 
assumed all those present are already familiar with their contents. 
 

14.11 The legal advisor can speak at any time to advise the Hearing on 
technical matters, or ask questions of any party. 
 

Page 35



  PART 4 - SCHEDULE 17 

 

14.12 Order of proceedings: 
 
(a) The Investigating Officer presents their case and calls 
witnesses (if any) 
 
(b) The Councillor can ask the Investigating Officer and any 
witnesses’ questions. 
 
(c) The Hearing and IP can ask questions of the Investigating 
Officer and any witnesses’. 
 
(d) The Councillor can address the Hearing and call witnesses 
(if any). 
 
(e) The Investigating Officer can ask questions of the 
Councillor and witnesses. 
 
(f) The Hearing and IP can ask the Councillor and witnesses 
questions. 
 
(g) The Investigating Officer can make a closing statement. 
 
(h) The IP will be invited to give their advice on the matter. 
 
(i) The Councillor can make a closing statement. 
 
(j) All those present except the Hearing panel and the 
democratic services officer assisting the panel will leave the room 
while the Hearing makes its decision.  The Hearing may ask the 
legal advisor to attend to give advice. 
 
(k) The Hearing of the Standards and Governance Committee 
will announce its decision as to whether there has been a breach 
of the Code of Conduct taking in open session. 
 
(l) The Councillor will be invited to make representation on 
what action should be taken. 
 
(m) The Hearing may retire to consider what action should be 
taken and will announce its decision in open session. 
 
 

14.13 A written report of the Hearing and decision, with reasons, will be 
prepared, usually within 7 working days.  A copy will be sent to the 
Councillor and Complainant. 
 

14.14 The written report will be available for public inspection and 
published on the Council’s website within 10 working days of the 
decision. 
 

Page 36



  PART 4 - SCHEDULE 17 

 

  
15. NOTIFICATION OF FINDINGS 
 As soon as reasonably practicable after the Hearing of the Standards 

and Governance Committee makes its finding, the Monitoring Officer 
shall give written notice of the finding and the reasons for it to the 
Councillor and the Complainant.  
 

 
 

Page 37



  PART 4 - SCHEDULE 17 

 

 
 
Schedule 17 - Appendix 2 

 
LOCAL ASSESSMENT CRITERIA For Consideration of Complaints 
 
The following criteria shall be applied to the Initial Filtering Panel, and the 
Standards and Governance Assessment Sub-Committee when considering 
allegations that a Councillor has failed to comply with the Councillor Code of 
Conduct. 
 
1. Is the complaint within the jurisdiction of the Committee? Does it relate to 

the conduct of a Councillor in their capacity as a Councillor, or is it conduct 
relating to their private life? 
 

2.  Is there evidence, in support of the allegation, of a breach of the Code? 
 

3. Is it serious enough to warrant a sanction? 
 

4. Is this part of a continuing pattern of conduct which taken as a whole 
might constitute a breach of the Code? 
 

5. Would an investigation serve a useful purpose? 
 

6. Is the case suitable for local investigation? 
 

7. Does it appear that the complaint is really about dissatisfaction with a 
Council decision? 
 

8. 
 
 
9. 
 

Is there enough information currently available to justify a decision to refer 
the matter for investigation? 
 
Is the complaint trivial, malicious, vexatious, politically motivated, tit-for-tat 
or made by a persistent complainant? 
 

 

Page 38



  PART 4 - SCHEDULE 17 

 

 
 
Schedule 17 - Appendix 3 
 
Factors to consider when deciding whether the identity of the complainant 
and/or written summary of the allegation should be disclosed to the 
Councillor the subject of the allegation. 
 
1. Are there reasonable grounds for believing that the complainant will be at 

risk of physical harm if their identity is disclosed? 
 

2. Is the complainant an officer who works closely with the Councillor and 
afraid of the consequences to their employment if their identity is 
disclosed? 
 

3. Is there evidence of any medical risks associated with the complainant's 
identity being disclosed?  
 

4. Is it feasible for the complaint to be investigated without the complainant's 
identity being disclosed (e.g. where the allegation is bullying of the 
complainant)?  
 

5. Are there reasonable grounds for believing that disclosure of the 
complainant's identify and/or the provision of a written summary of 
allegation, may lead to intimidation of witnesses or the destruction of 
evidence? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

1 
 

Gosport Borough Council  

Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) 

Completion Instructions for IIA Leads:  

Use this IIA during development to initially assess the likely impact, on both customers and staff, of a proposed new policy, 

strategy, function or service or a proposed change to an existing one. This IIA aims to provide an early warning of any potential 

issues that could adversely impact our customers or staff or result in costly errors in terms of financial or reputational management. 

Evaluating the proposed changes against our key considerations regarding equality & diversity and climate change allows us to 

modify or mitigate any adverse impacts before implementation. It also demonstrates transparency in the Council’s decision making. 

It is a working document with named Subject Expert Officers (SEOs) who can support you - as the IIA Lead, through this process. 

Please do ask the SEOs for advice about potential impacts. 

Impacts in the template are marked: +ve (positive) -ve (negative) or neutral. Once completed the IIA must be signed off by your 

Head of Service and a summary copy attached to the Board or Committee report. Officers have a Duty to ensure that 

Councillors/decision makers understand the impact of decisions before those decisions are made. 

 

Policy/Strategy/Function/ Project  New Existing  IIA Lead Contact Details Date 

Annual Review of Code of Conduct for 
Members 

  Paul Grant paul.grant@gosport.gov.uk 21 January 2022 
 
 

 

What is the aim of this policy/strategy/function/project? What will it change ? 

 
The Council has committed to an annual review of the Code of Conduct for Councillors in its response to the Committee on 
Standards in Public Life, Chaired by Lord Evans of Weardale, and recognised in that response that there may be elements of the 
best practice recommendations set out in the Weardale report that could be incorporate – and improve – the existing code. It is also 

P
age 41



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

2 
 

a timely review as the current code was introduced in May 2019. 
 
A working group was convened of members from the Committee to consider the Weardale report best practice recommendations 
further and to look at how supporting the Borough Solicitor in proposing amendments for consideration by the Policy and 
Organisation Board and Full Council. The report and appendices propose changes to the Code of Conduct for Members and the 
Procedure for Councillor Complaints together with ancillary changes to the relevant webpages of the Council’s website and public 
consultation. 
 

Has any consultation been undertaken on this proposed change?                                   yes            no 

If yes, summarise the methods used and results of the consultation:  
 
Public consultation will be conducted for four weeks following the committee to establish public views on the changes to the Code 
of Conduct. 
 

 

A. EQUALITY & DIVERSITY 

The Public Sector Equality Duty is part of the Equality Act 2010. The Duty requires the Council to have due regard to the following 
three aims: 
• eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
• advance equal opportunities between people from different groups 
• foster good relations between people from different groups.   

Having due regard means considering how this policy, strategy, project or function has or will advance equal opportunities for each 
of the protected groups below. 

Please note: If this proposal means a change in the availability, degree of provision or access to a service, benefit or 
facility for any group of people, then this Equality &Diversity impact assessment must be completed to assess if this 
proposal could be deemed unlawfully discriminatory.  

P
age 42



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

3 
 

SEO for support to complete this section- Mandy Baggaley, CPCS, x5695 mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk 

Protected Characteristic + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Age   X  

Disability   X 
We have considered how the procedure of making 
complaints will be made more accessible by enabling access 
through a variety of means rather than just online.  

Gender reassignment   X 
The Code of Conduct and procedure of making a complaint 
has been reviewed to ensure compliance with the Council’s 
Accessible Communication Guidance which includes 
consideration of requests for information additional formats 
and languages. A reference to this Guidance is now made 
within the revised procedure. 

Marriage and Civil Partnership   X 
Pregnancy    X 
Race (ethnicity, nationality, colour)   X 
Religion or Belief (and lack of belief)   X 
Sex   X 
Sexual Orientation   X 

The Armed Forces Bill places a new duty on public bodies to have due regard to ensure those who serve in the Armed Forces, whether 
Regular or Reserve, those who have served in the past, and their families, should face no disadvantage compared to other citizens in the 
provision of public and commercial services. Special consideration is appropriate in some cases, especially for those who have given most 
such as the injured and the bereaved. Please refer to these resources for more information about the needs and characteristics of the armed 
forces community and our commitment to the Covenant.  GBC Covenant Agreement 2020 Local AFC Profile, needs assessment, resources   

Section of the Armed Forces 
Community 

+ ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

All   X As above  

     
     

Are there any other groups which could be impacted (e.g. socially or financially excluded) by this item? If yes, identify below: 

     

     

     

P
age 43

mailto:mandy.baggaley@gosport.go.uk
file://///knuckles/department/strat_policy/Equalities%20-MB/Equality%20Impact%20Assessments/Integrated%20EIA%202021%20w%20CC/GBC%20Covenant%20Agreement%202020
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/gosportarmedforcescommunity


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

4 
 

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

Ensure reviewed Code and related 
procedures and any amendments to them 
are accessible in accordance with the 
Councils Accessible Communications 
Guidance 

Borough Solicitor 
Following review of Code and 
presentation to Policy & Organisation 
Board  

   

    

B. CLIMATE CHANGE & ENVIRONMENT 

Consider how this change will have an impact with regard to 

 Greenhouse gas emissions 

 Ability to adapt to the impacts of climate change 

 Waste Management 

 Air Quality 

 Natural Environment 

SEOs for support to complete this section- Tim Pratt, CPCS, x5573    tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk 

Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions from buildings 
Gas or electricity use and provision of 
renewable electricity, by GBC or others 

   N/A 

Emissions from transport 
Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC or others 

   N/A 

P
age 44

mailto:tim.pratt@gosport.gov.uk


Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

5 
 

Emissions from agriculture 
and land use 

Creation or removal of carbon sinks in 
Gosport, and changes to food consumption 

   N/A 

Embedded emissions 
Emissions from manufacturing goods and 
materials used by GBC or others 

   N/A 

Climate Change 
Adaptation 

Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Vulnerability to storms 
Flood prevention and extent to which 
buildings, habitats and species would be 
affected by flooding and high winds 

   N/A 

Vulnerability to heat waves 

Provision of shading, ventilation and 
insulation in buildings, and extent to which 
habitats and species would be affected by 
heat 

   N/A 

Vulnerability to drought 

Water use in buildings, agriculture, and 
industrial processes, and extent to which 
habitats and species would be affected by 
drought 

   N/A 

Vulnerability to food 
insecurity 

Opportunity for local food production    N/A 

Waste Management Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Amount of waste 
generated 

Levels of consumption by GBC, households 
and businesses, and extent to which 
materials used are reusable 

   N/A 

Proportion of waste 
recycled 

Recyclability of materials used by GBC, 
households and businesses, and provision 
of recycling services 

   N/A 

P
age 45



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

6 
 

Air Quality Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from transport 

Amount of travel (including goods 
transportation), travel modes and fuels 
used, by GBC and others; impacts on 
congestion and amount of idling of more 
vehicles 

   N/A 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from industrial processes 

Emissions from chemical processes    N/A 

Emissions of key pollutants 
from other sources 

Domestic and other fires    N/A 

Impact of key pollutants 
Rate at which pollutants are absorbed or 
dispersed 

   N/A 

Natural Environment Things to consider + ive - ive Neutral Explanation of Impact 
Sustainability of public 
spaces 

Amount of vegetation and maintenance    N/A 

Biodiversity and quality of 
habitats 

General impacts on habitats and direct 
impacts on species of concern 

   N/A 

What actions will be taken to address/ mitigate potential negative impacts identified: 

Action By whom By when 

   

   

    

P
age 46



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

7 
 

C. IIA SUMMARY 

Have any positive or negative impacts been identified in 
sections A and B? 

 

Subject + ive - ive Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity   We have considered how access to the complaints procedure can be 
improved. We can consider this further through the feedback received during 
the public consultation and from further Council meetings. 

 

B. Climate Change & Environment   N/A 

Can any negative impacts be mitigated? 
 

Subject Yes No N/A Explanation 

A. Equality & Diversity    N/A 

B. Climate Change & Environment    N/A 

Is further assessment in either subject area necessary to conclude this assessment? 

Subject Yes No If yes, timetable for completion 

A. Equality & Diversity    

B. Climate Change &Environment     

P
age 47



Integrated Impact Assessment for E&D and CC-CPCS, MB  26-05-21 

8 
 

D. IIA CONCLUSION 

     This IIA is complete. No further assessment is required if identified actions are undertaken. This summary can be 

included with Board or Committee reports. 

     This IIA identified further assessment should be undertaken in the identified areas before implementation of this 

proposed change. 

Signed by Head of Service: 

Date: 21 January 2022 

 

P
age 48



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose 
 

To update the committee on the progress of the Audit Plan 2021/22, agreed (July 2021), to 
the Members with responsibility for governance. 

 

Recommendations 
 

a. That the Standards and Governance Committee note the progress of the Audit Plan 
2021/22 from 1st April 2021 - 14th January 2022. 
 

1. Background & Purpose 
 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Standards and Governance Committee with an 
overview of internal audit activity against assurance work completed in accordance with the 
approved internal audit plan. Members of this Committee approved the 2021/22 Annual Audit 
in July 2021 which consisted of 38 audit assignments initially.   

.  
 

2. Report 
 
2.1 Appendix A is the Audit Progress Report 1st April 2021 - 14th January 2022. 

  
3. Conclusion 

 
3.1 That the Committee note the Audit Progress against the 2021/22 Audit Plan. 

 

Financial Services 
comments: 

Nil 

Legal Services comments: Nil 

Crime and Disorder: Nil 

Equality and Diversity: Nil 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

The delivery of the annual audit plan is a key function of the service. 

Corporate Plan: It supports the Council in pursuit of excellence through delivering an 
effective and high quality governance evaluation and monitoring. 

Risk Assessment: The work performed by Internal Audit assists in reducing the overall 
risk exposure in the Council’s operations and provides a high degree 
of assurance to management in placing reliance on the adequacy of 
internal controls within their Services 

Background papers: None 

Appendices/Enclosures: Appendix A – Audit Progress Report 1st April 2021 - 14th January 
2022 

Report author/ Lead 
Officer: 

Paul Somerset - Chief Internal Auditor 

 

Board/Committee: Standards and Governance Committee 

Date of Meeting: 10th February 2022 

Title: Audit Progress Report from 1st April to 14th January 
2022 

Author: Chief Internal Auditor 

Status: FOR NOTING 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Progress Report 14th January 2022 

Paul Somerset, Chief Internal Auditor 

 

P
age 51



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 2 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

1. I n t r o d u c t i o n   

 

Internal Audit is a statutory function for all local authorities.  

The requirement for an Internal Audit function in local government is detailed within the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 as to: 

 

Undertake an effective internal audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance 
processes, taking into account public sector internal auditing standards or guidance 

 
The standards for ‘proper practices’ are laid down in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards [the Standards – updated 2016]. 

Internal auditing is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations. It helps an 

organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, control 

and governance processes 

This report includes the status against the 2021/22 internal audit plan. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

P
age 52



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 3 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

2 .  A u d i t  P l a n  P r o g r e s s  a s  o f  1 4 t h  J a n u a r y  2 0 2 2  

 

There are 34 audits in the revised plan for 2021/22. 

To date, 15 (44%) have been issued, 3 (9%) are in draft report, 9 (26%) are work in progress and 7 (21%) are yet to be initiated.  

 

 

S t a t u s  A u d i t s  

Identified 7 

Fieldwork 9 

Draft Report 3 

Issued 15 
 

 
 
 

21% 

26% 

9% 

44% 

Audit Plan Progress as of 14th 
January 2022 

Identified

Fieldwork

Draft

Issued

P
age 53



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 4 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

3 .  O n g o i n g  I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  I n v o l v e m e n t /  C o v i d  u p d a t e   
 
COVID-19 
Gosport Borough Council moved to Business Critical services on the 18th March 2020, due to the Covid pandemic. Internal Audit staff were redeployed to 
aid the council in processing Business Grants and assisting in the Covid welfare work. Internal Audit began to recommence activities in early July 2020 
however staff were still undertaking Grant work and assisting in business recovery until October 2021 
The Senior Auditor had been redeployed to assist with the administration of the grants and while this redeployment has ended, time is spent advising 
colleagues in this area.  
It has been calculated that from April 2021 to October 2021, the Senior Auditor has spent approximately 40 days on Covid Grant related work. For context, 
for audit resource calculation purposes, the Senior Auditor is assigned approximately 140 days per annum for audit work. 
 
Following further announcements from Central Government of more business related grants, the s151 Officer has requested that the Senior Auditor is 
redeployed again to assist with the administration of these new grants. At the current time it is not clear how much time will be needed but once this has 
been determined, it may require further alterations to the audit plan. 
 
 
 
 
Internal Audit has provided advice, ongoing reviews and involvement work in the following areas. (For reference, advice is only recorded when the time 
taken to provide the advice exceeds one hour): 
 

 Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act (RIPA) - authorisations (if applicable) and policy review 

 Anti-Money Laundering - policy review 

 National Fraud Initiative (NFI) to facilitate national data matching carried out by the Cabinet Office 

 National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) bulletins and intelligence follow up 

 Standards & Governance Committee - reporting and attendance  

 Audit Planning and Consultation 

 Risk Management & Annual Governance Statement  
 

 
 

P
age 54



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 5 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

4 .  A u d i t  P l a n  S t a t u s / C h a n g e s  
 

No changes have been made to the Audit Plan since the last meeting (October 2021) 

5 .  A r e a s  o f  C o n c e r n   
 

No new areas of concern 

 

6. A s s u r a n c e  L e v e l s  
 

Internal Audit reviews culminate in an opinion on the assurance that can be placed on the effectiveness of the framework of risk management, control and 

governance designed to support the achievement of management objectives for the area under review. 

A s s u r a n c e  L e v e l  D e s c r i p t i o n  /  E x a m p l e s  

Assurance 
No issues or minor improvements noted within the audit but based on the testing conducted, assurance can be placed 
that the activity is of low risk to the Authority 

Reasonable Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified but overall the activities do not pose significant risks to the Authority 

Limited Assurance Control weaknesses or risks were identified which pose a more significant risk to the Authority 

No Assurance 
Major individual issues identified or collectively a number of issues raised which could significantly impact the overall 
objectives of the activity that was subject to the Audit 

NAT No areas tested 

P
age 55



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 6 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

 

Audits rated No Assurance are specifically highlighted to the Standards and Governance Committee along with 
any Section Head comments. The Committee is able to request any director attends a meeting to discuss the 

issues. 

 

7 .  E x c e p t i o n  R i s k  R a n k i n g  
 

The following table outline the exceptions raised in audit reports, reported in priority order and are broadly equivalent to those previously used. 

 

P r i o r i t y  L e v e l  D e s c r i p t i o n  

Low Risk 
(Improvement) 

Very low risk exceptions or recommendations that are classed as improvements that are intended to help the service fine tune its control 
framework or improve service effectiveness and efficiency.  An example of an improvement recommendation would be making changes to a filing 
system to improve the quality of the management trail.  

Medium Risk These are control weaknesses that may expose the system function or process to a key risk but the likelihood of the risk occurring is low.  

High Risk 

Action needs to be taken to address significant control weaknesses but over a reasonable timeframe rather than immediately.  These issues are 
not ‘show stopping’ but are still important to ensure that controls can be relied upon for the effective performance of the service or function.  If 
not addressed, they can, over time, become critical.  An example of an important exception would be the introduction of controls to detect and 
prevent fraud.  

Critical Risk 
Control weakness that could have a significant impact upon not only the system function or process objectives but also the achievement of the 
Council’s objectives in relation to: The efficient and effective use of resources, The safeguarding of assets, The preparation of reliable financial and 
operational information, Compliance with laws and regulations and corrective action needs to be taken immediately. 

P
age 56



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 7 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

 

Any critical exceptions found the will be reported in their entirety to the Standards and Governance Committee along with Section 
Head comments 

 

8 .   2 0 2 0 / 2 1  A u d i t s  c o m p l e t e d  s i n c e  l a s t  m e e t i n g   
Payroll  - Finance  

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 1 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Assurance  

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by March 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Assurance  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Reasonable Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data Assurance 
 

The medium risk exception relates to a lack of procedure notes for a payroll process which causes an operational risk should the officer who performs the 

process not be available. 

Homelessness & Temporary Accommodation - Housing 

Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 1 0 
 

Overall Assurance Level 

 Reasonable Assurance   

 
Agreed actions are scheduled to be 

implemented by April 2022 

Assurance Level by Scope Area 

Achievement of Strategic Objectives  Assurance  

Compliance with Policies, Laws & Regulations Reasonable Assurance 

Safeguarding of Assets Reasonable Assurance 

Effectiveness and Efficiency of Operations Assurance 

Reliability and Integrity of Data Assurance 
 

The medium risk exception relates to a homelessness strategy which requires an update to comply with current legislation. 

 

P
age 57



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 8 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

9 .  F o l l o w - u p  A c t i o n  C a t e g o r i s a t i o n  

 
The following table outlines the follow up categories used to describe the outcome of follow up testing completed. 
 

 

 
 

 

F o l l o w  U p  C a t e g o r i e s  D e s c r i p t i o n  

Open No action has been taken on agreed action.  

Pending Actions cannot be taken at the current time but steps have been taken to prepare.  

In Progress Progress has been made on the agreed action however they have not been completed. 

Implemented but not Effective Agreed action implemented but not effective in mitigating the risk. 

Closed: Verified Agreed action implemented and risk mitigated, verified by follow up testing. 

Closed: Not Verified Client has stated action has been completed but unable to verify via testing. 

Closed: Management Accepts 
Risk 

Management has accepted the risk highlighted from the exception. 

Closed: No Longer Applicable Risk exposure no longer applicable.  

P
age 58



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 9 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

Governance Follow Up - Executive   

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 3 2 
 

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the original audit 
was in May 2021. 

Original Assurance Level  Follow-up Assurance Level 

Reasonable Assurance  Reasonable Assurance 
 

  Follow Up Action 

Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

1  0 1 0 3 (1 Medium, 
2 Low)  

0 0 0 

 

The closed exceptions related to the risk register, member training and policies. The open and in progress exceptions relate to the Corporate Plan and plan 

on a page which require updating. A new target date for Summer 2022 following further consultation work 

 

Workforce Planning Follow Up - HR 

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 0 5 2 
 

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the original audit 
was in March 2021. 

Original Assurance Level  Follow-up Assurance Level 

Limited Assurance  Reasonable Assurance 
 

  Follow Up Action 

Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

1  0 6  
(4 Medium, 2 

Low) 

0 0  1  
(Medium) 

0 0 

 

P
age 59



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 10 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

The closed exception related to the use of a manager recruitment form which was no longer required. The in progress exceptions relate to a workforce plan 

strategy, talent development, limited use of non mandatory training, succession planning and use of PDR's. All these areas plan to be addressed within the 

new workforce plan strategy which has a target date of Q2 in 2022 

 

Social Media - Executive 

Original Exceptions Raised 

Critical High Medium Low 

0 2 2 3 
 

Latest implementation date 
scheduled during the original audit 
was in March 2021. 

Original Assurance Level  Follow-up Assurance Level 

Limited Assurance  Reasonable Assurance 
 

  Follow Up Action 

Open Pending In Progress Implemented but Not 
Effective 

Closed: 
Verified 

Closed: Not 
Verified  

Closed: Management 
Accepts Risks 

Closed: No Longer 
Applicable 

0  0 7  
(2 High, 2 

Medium, 3 
Low) 

0 0  0 
 

0 0 

 

The high and medium risk exceptions relate to a lack of social media and or communications strategy, training re use of social media, process for posting on 

GBC social media and a lack of analysis on social media posts to determine their reach. All exceptions aim to be addressed by a new communications 

strategy which is in the process of being drafted and is due to be completed in Q2 of 2022. 

 

 

 

P
age 60



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 11 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

1 0 .  A u d i t s  i n  D r a f t  t o  d a t e  ( 1 4 t h  J a n u a r y  2 0 2 2 )  

 
Audit Directorate  Draft Since Projected Issue Date Revised Comments 

Partnerships Executive 20/9/21 November 2021 January 
2022 

Further testing being undertaken 

Accounts Payable Finance 10/1/22 January 2022   

Absence 
Management 

HR 10/1/22 January 2022 
  

 
 

1 1 .  A u d i t s  i n  P r o g r e s s  t o  D a t e  ( 1 4 t h  J a n u a r y  2 0 2 2 )  

Audit 
Directorate  Delayed 

Projected Issued 
Date 

Revised Issued 
Date Comments 

Accounts Receivable Finance N/A February 2022   

Direct Services 
Organisation (DSO) 

Streetscene N/A February 2022 
  

Microsoft Teams IT N/A January 2022   

Procurement Follow up Executive N/A February 2022   

Homelessness Grant Housing N/A March 2022   

Council Tax Support 
Grant 

Finance N/A March 2022 
  

P
age 61



I n t e r n a l  A u d i t  P r o g r e s s  R e p o r t  

 

Page 12 
Gosport Borough Council Internal Audit Service is performed in compliance with the Public Sector 

Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). Compliance to the standard was internally assessed in May 2020  

 

 

FOI SAR Legal N/A March 2022   

Covid Assurance  Executive N/A March 2022   

Test and Trace Grant Finance N/A March 2022   

P
age 62


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting held on 18 November 2021
	Minutes

	6 Amendments to Code of Conduct for Members and Arrangements for Dealing with Allegations of Breaches of the Code of Conduct for Members.
	6. Appendix A Code of Conduct Report
	Code of Conduct CLEAN 21012022.pdf
	Part 4 Schedule 17 -Procedure for Complaints against Councillors CLEAN 21012022.pdf

	6. Appendix B GBC IIA - Code of Conduct for Members 21012022

	7 Audit Progress Report from 1st April to 14th January 2022
	Appendix A Internal Audit Progress Report Jan 22 Final


